TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Note No. (X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
{I) ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 02 25,229 22,432
(b) Capital work-in-progress 02 3,020 2,602
(c} Other intangible assets 03 182 223
(d) Right-of-use assets 03A 1,314 1,806
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 04 85,540 85,540
(i) Trade receivables 06 1,552 2,186
(iii) Loans 05 13 9
(iv) Other financial assets 07 696 884
(f) Non current tax assets 1,127 2,579
(g) Deferred tax assets (Net) 27(H) 2,394 2,885
(h) Other assets 08 177 177
1,21,244 1,21,323
{2) Current assets
{(a) Inventories 09 9,013 8,930
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 10 5,764 3,616
(i) Trade receivables 06 35,176 26,870
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11(a) 1,739 4,097
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 11{b) 4,024 3,650
{v) Loans 05 1 11
{(vi) Other financial assets 07 18,922 21,739
(c) Other assets 08 2,586 2,884
77,225 71,797
TOTAL ASSETS 1,98,469 1,93,120
{1}  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 6,321 6,321
(b) Other equity 13 1,11,087 1,04,350
1,17,408 1,10‘671
{2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 14 970 1,396
(i} Other financial liabilities 16 9,725 9,590
(b) Provisions 17 554 547
(c) Employee benefit obligations 18 5,551 6,342
(d) Deferred income 19 11,138 9,585
27,938 27,460
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 14 429 438
(i) Trade payables 15
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16,975 15,880
(b) Total outsFandmg dues other than micro and 16,201 16,070
small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 5,063 9,644
(b) Provisions 17 816 1,872
(c) Employee benefit obligations 18 836 1,380
(d) Deferred income 19 776 682
{e) Other liabilities 20 12,027 9,023
53,123 54,989
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,98,469 1,93,120
Nates forming part of the financial statements 1-27(Q)
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
 This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
DIN: 02139568
Place : Jamshedpyr
g L
- \
Piyush Sonthalia Ritu Raj Sinha Nisha Anil Seth
Partner Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No - 062447 DIN: 00729535 Place : New Delhi
Place : Kolkata Place : Jamshedpur
Date: April 25, 2024 Date: April 25, 2024




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

I Revenue from operations
Il Otherincome
Il Total income (I + 1)

IV Expenses
(a) Direct expenses
(b) Employee benefits expense
(c) Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(e) Other expenses
Total expenses

V  Profit before taxes (lll - IV})

VI Tax expense
(a) Current tax
- In respect of current year
- In respect of prior year
(b) Deferred tax
Total tax expense

VIl Profit after taxes (V - VI)

VIl Other comprehensive income

(i} Items that will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
(a) Remeasurement gains/(losses) on post employment defined benefit plans.

(b) Income tax thereon

(i) ltems that will be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Total Other comprehensive income

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10/- per share)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note For the year ended
No. March 31, 2024
(X in Lakhs)
21 1,64,725
22 3,939
1,68,664
23 1,31,440
24 18,353
25 1,072
02 2,356
26 4,621
1,57,842
10,822
27(H)
1,752
256
491
2,499
8,323
25
(6)
19
8,342
27(G) 13.17
1-27(Q)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
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Piyush Sonthalia

Partner

Membership No - 062447
Place : Kolkata

Date: April 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN: 02139568

Place : Jamshedpur

CiL

Ritu Raj Sinha
Managing Director
DIN: 00729535
Place : Jamshedpur

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
(X in Lakhs)
1,42,254
4,868
1,47,122

1,14,678
14,418
706
1,969
4,407
1,36,178

10,944

2,099

66
(320)

1,845

9,099

(676)
170

(506)
8,593

15.04

Nisha Anil Seth
Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi

jl 25, 2024




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
Forthe yearended For the year ended 31st

31st March 2024 March 2023
{Xin Lakhs) (% In Lakhs)
A. Cash Flow from operating actlvitles:
Profit before taxes 10,822 10,944
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,356 1,969
Finance costs 1,072 706
Dividend Income from investments (1,486) (3,686)
Liability no longer required written back {1,085) (252}
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) (] (3)
Provision for inventories (112) 284
(Net Gain) / Loss on sale of current investments (439) (293)
Interest income (348) (182)
Other non cash items 328 (90)
Operating profit before changes in current/non current assets and liabilities 11,108 9,397
Adjustments for:
Increase / {Decrease) in Non current / current financial assets and other assets (4,895) (6,490)
Increase / {Decrease) in Employee benefit obligations {1,310) 400
Increase / (Decrease) in Inventories 29 (198)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non current / current financial liabilities, other liabilities 392 5181
and provisions 4
Increase / (Decrease) in Deferred income 1,647 392
Cash generated from operations 6,971 8,682
Income taxes paid (net of refund) (562) (2,030)
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities 6,409 6,652
B. Cash Flow from investing activities:
_Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets including Capital Work (5,047) (3,218)
in progress
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0 8
Sale / (Purchase) of current investments (net) (2,093) (277)
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries - (6,800)
Purchase of investments in joint ventures - (898)
Dividend Income from investments 1,486 3,686
Fixed deposits with banks (placed in) / realised (net) {225) (546)
Net Gain / {Loss) on sale of current investments 439 293
Interest income 348 182
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (5,092) (7,570)
€. Cash Flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares - 6,799
Interest paid (1,451) {587)
Dividend paid (1,605) (4,150)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (436) (209)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (183) (77)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (3,675) 1,776
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {2,358) 858
Cash and cash equival as at the beginning of the year (Refer note 11(a)} 4,097 3,239
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year {Refer note 11{a)) 1,739 4,097
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Cash on hand 17 7
- Balance in current account 1,722 4,090
1,739 4,097
Notes :

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) 7
Statement of Cash flows notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act.

2.'0' indicates value below the rounding off conversion of X Lakhs.

Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-27(Q)
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
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Piyush Sonthalia Ritu Raj Sinha Nisha Anil Seth

Partner Managing Director Company Secretary

Membership No - 062447 DIN: 00729535 Place : New Delhi

Place : Kolkata Place : Jamshedpur

Date: April 25, 2024
Date: April 25, 2024




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital - Issued and subscribed {note 12) (X in Lakhs)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6,005
Changes in equity share capital during the year 316
Balance as at March 31, 2023 6,321
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,321

(X in Lakhs)
B. Other Equlity {note 13) Retained earnings
Profit and loss Other comprehensive sub-total Securities premium Total
income {OCI)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 22,035 {1,118) 20,917 72,506 93,423
Profit for the year 9,099 - 9,099 - 9,099
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - (5086) (506) - (506)
Additions during the year - - - 6,484 6,484
Divi'dend paid {Including interim dividend of X 3,375 lakhs) (4,150) ’ (4,150) 3 (8,150)
during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2023 26,984 (1,624) 25,360 78,990 1,04,350
Profit for the year 8,323 = 8,323 & 8,323
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 19 19 = 19
Dividend paid (Including interim dividend of % 1,247 lakhs) (1,605) B (1,605) B (1,605)
during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33,702 {1,605) 32,097 78,990 1,11,087

Notes forming part of financial statements

1-27(Q)

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the statement of changes in equity referred in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chrinakya Cha
Chajrman
DIN: 02139568
Place : Jamshedpur
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Piyush Sonthalia Ritu Raj Sinha Nisha Anil Seth
Partner Managing Director Company Secretary

Membership No - 062447
Place : Kolkata
Date: April 25, 2024

DIN: 00729535
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Place : New Delhi

Date: April 25, 2024




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

(1) Company information

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (‘TSUISL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited Company incorporated
in India with its registered office in Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, India.

TSUISL is India’s first private sector comprehensive urban infrastructure service provider. Carved out of Tata Steel Limited
in 2004, it has the legacy of over ten decades of experience in providing these services-water, wastewater, power
distribution, municipal solid waste management and town planning- at Jamshedpur.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“%”) which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

As at March 31, 2024, Tata Steel Limited owns 100% of the ordinary share of the Company and has the ability to influence
the Company operations.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the board of directors and authorized for
issue on April 25, 2024.

{2) Material accounting policy

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.
Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, as amended from time to time.

(b) Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain assets and liabilities
that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind-AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle which
is based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

in preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not clear from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its consolidated financial statements.
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

Impairment

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering
current economic conditions and trends, estimates future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future
economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are
discounted using a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value.

Determining whether the non-current investments are impaired requires an estimate of the value in use of investments. In
considering the value in use, the management anticipates the future prices, operating margins, discount rates and other
factors of the underlying businesses / operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow
Model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks,
credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Company’s retirement benefit obligation is subject to a number of judgments including discount rates, inflation and
salary growth. Significant judgment is required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a
significant impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company sets these judgements based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major component having
different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of cost of qualifying asset.

(e) Intangible assets

Software and license costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that associated future
economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Al other costs on software and license are expensed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Intangible assets include development of property of Mysore landfill project. The project was at Build, Operate and
Transfer (BOT) basis under the Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model for a period of 28.8 years. Based on the assessment
of Appendix C of Ind AS 115, all the expenditure incurred for property, plant and equipment have been reclassified as
intangible assets.

(f} Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets. These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their
intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual
values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of power
business depreciation is provided on straight line basis at the rates specified in Electricity Act, 2003.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are:

Block of Assets Estimated useful life (years)
Buildings 10 - 60 Years

Plant and machinery 2 - 30 Years

Office equipments 3-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 Years
Vehicles "~ 8VYears
Intangible assets 5-10 Years

Assets covered under Electricity Act (life as prescribed under the Electricity Act) 2-15 Years

Assets value up to 35,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
(g} Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order
to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Aercdfiseountants |
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

(h) Leases
The Company as lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of
the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. The Company
recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. lhe cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception comprises of the amount of initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
tease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.
The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are expensed to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which the events or conditions which trigger those payments occur.

(i) Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Where an indication exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognized, if
required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal
proceeds and carrying amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

(i) Financial assets

Trade receivables - Trade receivables are amount due from customers for services rendered / products sold in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional as they
do not contain significant financing component. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest methad,
less loss allowances.

Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have
maturities of less than one year from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

Bank balance other than above - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and
usage.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing
transaction.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the
credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing of the proceeds received.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Derecogpnition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

(k) Retirement benefit costs
Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company'’s obligations
under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net
defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognized based on actuarial valuation at the present value of the obligation as
on the reporting date.

(I} Inventories

Land is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). Costs comprise direct purchase cost, impravement cost
that have been incurred in bringing the land to their present condition.

Stores and spare parts are carried at weighted average cost. Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items
based on historical experience of utilization.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be
reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on discounted basis.
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

® by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

e as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsihilities.

(n) Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.

(o) Contribution from customers

Contribution received from consumers towards installation of assets pertaining to distribution of power and water, are
credited to deferred income on capitalization of related assets. An amount in proportion to the depreciation charge for the
year on such assets is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(p) Government grants

Government grants related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment are credited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis representative of the pattern of fulfillment of
obligations associated with the grant received. Total grants received less the amounts credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss at the balance sheet date are included in the balance sheet as deferred income.

{(q) Taxation

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted in countries where the Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset
is realized based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

hartered ,'tv-z.mtn.n‘.t
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

(r)

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Revenue

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contract with customers' for the annual
reporting period commencing April 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Revenue is recognised at a point of time and over a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts
with customers.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced by rebates, allowances and
taxes and duties collected on behalf of government.

Revenue also includes adjustments made towards liquidated damages, performance guarantee and estimated loss on
contract wherever applicable.

Revenue from services and construction contracts
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time, based on the actual service provided to the end of
the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided as the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

For contract of fixed expenditure plus margin, revenue is recognised over a period of time, based on the actual service
provided on which expenditure been incurred and in which agreed margin is added.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust
any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from sale of power

Revenue from sales of power is recognized as per the prescribed rate approved by Jharkhand State Electricity Regulatory
Commission (JSERC) for the units consumed by the consumer, where revenue is recognised at a point of time.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that assets net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Note 1: Material accounting policies

(s) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 01, 2023. The
Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. These amendments did not have

material impact nor are expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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(R in Lakhs)
Total Right-of-
equipments  use assets

873 69 2,487
873 69 2,487
135 69 681
203 - 492
338 69 1,173
535 - 1,314
204 69 782
669 - 1,705
873 69 2,487
45 69 449
86 - 232
135 69 681
738 7 1,806

TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

03A - Right-of-use assets

Leasehold Plant and

Particulars

= land machinery
Cost as at April 01, 2023 20 1,335
Additions —— —— - -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 210 1,335
Accumulated depreciatio—n as at Abril 01, 2023 - 86 391
Charge for the year _ S 43 246
ac:_urnulal_eguﬂ_egr_ec_iqtfon as at March 31, 2024 a 129 637
[Net block as at March 31, 2024 TR 81 698
Cost as at April 01, 2022 210 299
Additions . - 1,036
Cost as at March 31, 2023 210 1,335
Accumulated depreciation as at April Oi,_Z(J_ZZ_ 43 288
Charge for the year 43 103
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 . 86 301
Net block as at March 31, 2023 ) B T 124 944
1Notes:

(a) Refer note 27(J) for details of depreciation charge, interest expenses and short term leases.
(b) The agreement for leasehold land was executed by the Company under its former name. i.e., Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

04. Investments

Investments carrled at cost

Unq d equity

In subsldlary companles

Haldia Water Management Limited

Tata Steel Business Delivery Centre Limited
(formerly Kalimati Global Shared Services
Limited)

Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
The Tata Pigments Limited

Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited

Aggregate provision for impairment in value of
investments

In Jolnt ventures

Naba Diganta Water Management Limited
Jamipol Limited

Nicco Jubilee Park Limited

Himalaya Stee! Mill Services Private Limited

Total investments

Notes:

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
(Rin Lakhs) {®In Lakhs)
1,666 1,666
400 400
58,957 58,957
10,191 10,191
1,788 1,788
73,002 73,002
1,666 1,666
71,336 71,336
1,365 1,365
11,372 11,372
0 0
1,467 1,467
14,204 14,204
85,540 85,540

(a}'0" indicates value below the rounding off conversion of ® Lakhs
(b) Details of subsidiaries and joint ventures at the end of the reporting year is as follows:

Name of the subsidiarles

No. of shares as at Place of
March 31, 2024 Incorporation and
(face value of Rs. 10/- principal place of

Princlpal activit
s v % of ownership Interest and voting

right held by the entity.

each fully pald up buslness
unless otherwise AsatMarch 31,  AsatMarch31,
specified 2024 2023
Subslidiary companles
Haldis Water Management Limited 1,66,64,210 West Bengal, India BOT projects and operation and maintenance 60% 60%
of the water treatment facilities in Haldia
region,
Tata Steel Business Delivery Centre Limited 40,00,006 West Bengal, India Business of providing outsourcing/ consultancy 100% 100%
{formerly Kalimati Global Shared Services services
Limited)
Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited 45,98,61,606  Odisha, India Construction (including alteration, addition, 100% 100%
repair and maintenance) activity
The Tata Pigments Limited 75,000 Jharkhand, India  Manufacturing of Paints, Building materials, 100% 100%
Plastic, Rubber goods, Paper, Inks etc.
Adivyapur Toll Bridge Company Limited 4,14,00,000 Jharkhand, India Building of complete constructions or parts 88.50% 88.50%

thereof; civil engineering and collection of Toll
Charges.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Formling Part of Financial Statement

Name of the jolnt ventures No. of shares as at Place of Princlpal activity % of ownership Interest and voting
March 31,2024  incorporation and right held by the entity.
(face value of Rs. 10/- principal place of
each fully pald up buslness AsatMarch31,  AsatMarch3l,
unless otherwise 2024 2023
specified
Naba Diganta Water Management Limited 1,36,53,000 West Bengal, India BOT projects and PPP Madsl comprising af 74.00% 74.00%
integrated water supply system and sewerage
system.
Jamipol Limited 39,25,000 Jharkhand, India  Production of desulphurising compounds (DCs) 34.89% 34.89%
used by the steel industry.
Micce Jubilee Park Limited 3,40,000 Jharkhand, india Building of complete constructions or parts 20.99% 20.99%
thereof; civil engineering.
Himalaya Steel Mill Services Private Limited 36,19,945 Jharkhand, India  Slag handling services. 26.00% 26.00%

Note:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company considered indicators of impairment such as changes in outlook of future profitability and other potential indicators for its
investments held,

The recoverable value of investments held in Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is higher of the value in use (VIU) of the underlying
business or the fair value less cost to sell. The ViU computation uses cash flow forecasts based on most recently approved financial budgets and strategic forecasts which cover a period
of eight years and future projections taking the analysis out into perpetuity based on a steady state, sustainable cash flow. Key assumptions for the value in use computations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate, market demand, sales prices etc. The projections are based on both past performance and the expectations of future performance and
assumptlons therein. The weighted average post-tax discount rate used for discounting the cash flows projections is 10.1% (March 31, 2023: 10.1%). Beyond the specifically forecasted
period, a growth rate of 1.72% (March 31, 2023: 4%-5%) is used to extrapolate the cash flow projections. This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
market.

The outcome of the assessment as on March 31, 2024 did not result in recognition of any impalrment for investments held in Tata Steel Special Economlc Zone Limited. The Company
has also conducted sensitivity analysis an the impairment tests including sensitivity in respect of discount rate and growth rate. The 1 it beli that no bly ibl
change in any of the key assumptions used in the assessment would cause the carrying value of such investment to exceed its recoverable amount.

In respect other investments held in subsidiaries and joint ventures, the outcome of the assessment as on March 31, 2024 did not result in recognition of any impairment. The Company
bl o

has also conducted sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests including sensitivity in respect of discount rate. The management beli thatnor y change in any of
the key assumptions used in the assessment would cause the carrying value of such investments to exceed its recaverable amount.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES UMITED

Motes g Part of Financtal
05 - Loans
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Partlculars (= in Lakhs) (Rin Lakhs)
cork Sk = Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
|a) Loany to relsted parties
Considered good - Unsecured (Refer note 27(D)) . - - - 10 10
Creditimpaired (Refer note 27(D)) - . - . = -
Lews: Allowanted for credit lasses = 5 - T = .
Total = = - . 10 10
(b) Other loans
Considered good - Unsecured 13 1 14 ] 1 10
Total 13 1 14 L 1 10
Grand Total 13 1 14 ] 1 20
{a} Current loans to related parties represent loans given to joint ventures R Nil iakhs (March 31, 2023: ® 10 lakhs).
{b) Other loans primarily represent (oans given o employees.
05 - Trade recelvables
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars {% In Lakhs) (®In Lakhs)
Non Currant Currant Tetal MNon Current Cumrent _ Yotal
(a) Secured, comldered good = 5,312 5,312 = 6,221 5,221
(b) Unsecured, considered good 1,552 29,864 31,416 2,186 20,649 22,835
(¢} Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,571 1,082 2,653 1,571 869 2,440
Less: Allowance for credit losses 1,571 1,082 2,653 1,571 BES 2,440
Total Trade recelvables 1,552 35,176 36,728 2,186 26,870 29,056
Notes:
[a) Ageing, classification and credit risk of trade receivables is as below:
{Rin Lakhs)
Outstanding for the followlng periods from due date of payment
Not yet due Less than & Months 6 Months - 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
[Hi March 31, 20. 1 Year
Undlsputed trade recefvables
{il Considered good 22,930 7,606 757 747 923 1,953 34,916
{il} Which have significant increase in credit risk = = = = * E -
{ili} Credit Impalred - - - 56 a5 819 920
Disputed trade recelvables
{i) Considered gaod . . . . . 1,812 1,812
(i) Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - . - -
(iii) Credit Impaired - . - . . 1,733 1,733
Gross Trada recelvables 22,930 7,606 757 803 968 6,317 39,381
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 7% % 40%
Less: Allowance for credit losses - - . 56 45 2,552 2,653
Net Trade recelvables 22,930 7,606 757 47 923 3,765 36,728
(% in Lakhs}
Outstanding for the followlng periods from due date of paymant
Not yet due Less than 6 Months 6 Months - 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
As st March 31, 2023 1 Year
Undisputed trade recelvablas
(i} Considered good 17,328 6,831 539 613 272 1,028 26,611
{ii] Which have signlficant increase In credit risk - - - - - - .
(iii} Credit impaired - = - 52 su 597 707
Disputed trade recelvables
(I} Cansldered good - B ] 0 2,445 2,445
(ii] Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - . . - -
110il} Creditimpaired - . - - - 1,733 1,733
Grows Trade recelvables 17,328 6.831 539 665 330 5,803 31,496
{Expocted lass rate % 0% 0% 8% 18% 40%
Less: Allowance for credit losses - - - 52 58 2,330 2,440
Net Trade recaivables 17,328 6,831 539 613 272 3,473 29,056

1(h} Movement in allowance for credit losses:
As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
(% in Lakhs} (% In Lakhs}
[Balante at the beginning of the year 1440 2,558
Pravislon created during the year 216 99
Pruvislons teversed during the year 3) {218)
Balance at the end of the year 2,653 2,400

() Amount outstanding from related parties
As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 023
{2 In Lokhs) (% in Lakhs]
Trade receivables fram related partles (Refer note 27(D)) 24,087 14,552

(d] The Company considers its maximum exposure Lo credit risk with respect to customers as at March 31, 2024 to be % 36,728 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: R 29,056 Lakhs ), which Is the fair value of trade
recelvables (after allowance for credit losses).

01 the trade recelvable balance as at March 31, 2024 X 22,071 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 of X 13,082 Lakhs ) Is due fram Tata Steel Limited the holding Company, ® 2,552 Lakhs {As on March 31, 2023 of X
3,450 Lakhs ) from Jharkhand Urban Inf; and [ Company and % 1,552 Lakhs {As at March 31, 2023 of X 2,186 Lakhs ) Is due from Karnataka Urban Water Supply and Drainage
[KUWSD), the entitles largest customers. There are no other customers who represents more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.

(e} Customer credit risk Is managed by the Company through established pelicy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables and contract assels are non-
Interest bearing. The Company has a detalled review mechanism of overdue receivables to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. The Company uses specific identification method In
determining the allowance for credit losses of trade and other ing prior past due status of doubtful receivables which Includes factors such as abllity lo pay, bankruptey,
marymient history, forward looking information etc. Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference 1o the Company's normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and
conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer's credit quality and p g market On specliic iflcation Rs. 2,353 lacs of trade recelvables and Rs. 147
lacs of contract assets (note 7) is considered doubtful of recovery and provided for in the books. Further, in determining the allowance for credit loss of trade recelvables and contract assets (having
sama risk ch Istles), the Ce has used the practical expedient by compuling the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provislon matrix takes Into account
historical credit loss experience and Is adjusted for forward looking Information. The expected credit loss allowance based on ageing of receivables and the rates used in provision matrix resulted in the
default risk as Indicated above (nole a), which Is not and the of Is given abave {note b).

117 Amount of ® 5,312 Lakhs {March 31, 2023 of ® 6,221 Lakhs ) recelvable from sale of power Is secured against the security deposits recelved from the customers in the form of bank guarantee or cash as
per the Slate El

(#) There are no outstanding debts due from directors or other employees of the Company including private companies where director of the Company is a director or member,

] Ch:arle.».'e-dv
= 1026




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
INotes Forming Part of Financlal Statement
D7 - Other financial assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
- (% In Lakhs) ] (% In Lakhs)
- L == NonCurrent  Current Total Nap) Cuirent Current Total
{a) Contract assets E 19,021 19,021 . 21,732 21,732
{b) Security deposlits 436 48 484 476 7 483
[c} Advances to group companies (Refer note 27(D)) - s s - 1 1
(4] Earmarked Non-current balances with bank* 260 . 260 408 - 408
Gross other financlal assets 696 19,074 19,770 884 21,740 22,624
Les: Provision for bad and doubtful other financlal assets
Lll] Contracl assets - 147 147 - - -
[b) Advances 1o group companles - 5 5 - 1 1
Tatal provislen lor bad and doubtful other financlal assets - 152 152 - b L
Net other financial assets 696 18,922 19,618 884 21,739 22,623
Clasaification of other financial assots
Sacured, consldered good . - - - - -
Unzecured, considered good 696 18,922 19,618 884 21,739 22,623
Doubtiul - 152 152 - 1 L
Gross other financlal assets 696 19,074 19,770 884 21,740 22,624
Notes:
*Earmarked bank balances represent deposits not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date. These are held against issue of bank guarantee.
04 - Other assets
Partlculars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
- {®in Lakhs) . - (R in Lakhs)
A, = = Curfent Total ___Non Current. Current Total
(2] Capltal advances 15 - 15 15 - 15
[b)} Advance with public bodies 2,052 1,527 3,579 2,052 1,320 3,372
{c) Other advances 0 1,634 1,634 L] 2,120 2,120
Gross other assets 2,067 3,161 5,228 2,067 3,440 5,507
Lexs; Provislon for bad & doubtful other assets
{a) Advance with public bodles 1,890 - 1,890 1,890 - 1,890
{b) Othier advances S 575 575 . 556 556
Tatal provision for bad and doubtful ather ausets 1,8%0 575 2,465 1,890 556 2,446
| Total other anets 177 2,586 2,763 177 2,884 3,061
Classification of ather assets
Secured, considered good - - - . - -
Unseeured, consldered good 177 2,586 2,763 177 2,884 3,061
Doubtiul 1,890 575 2,465 1,890 556 2,446
Gross other assets 2,067 3,161 5,228 2,067 3,440 5,507
() '0' indicates value below the rounding off converslon of X Lakhs.
[b) Others include advances agalnst supply of goods/s and ad paid lo
03 « Inventories
AsatMarch 31, Asat March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
e e = (RINGak) A%intakhs)_
[Inwentories (lower of cost or nat realizable value)
- Land, plots and construction in progress 2,229 7,343
- Stares and Spares 1,784 1,587
[ Tatal Inventerles 9,013 8,930
Motes:
(2} The value of stores and spares above is stated after impairment of ® 725 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: ® 837 Lakhs) for provision for slow moving and obsolete item
(b) Land, plots and in progress is as cost or net realisable value (NRV) whichever is lower. During the year ended March 31, 2024, land was vajued from a certified valuer. Fair value
of the land as per the vatuation regort is X 21,178 Lakhs. Hence land has been recognised at cost.
(<} Refer note no. 2{l) far accounting policy




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

10 - Current investments
Particulars As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Unguoted investments
Investment in mutual funds

Axis Liquid Fund - 304
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - 203
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - 204
HSBC Liquid Fund 1,931 204
Nippon India Liquid Fund - 316
Bandhan Liquid Fund . 313
SBI Liquid Fund 1,917 325
DSP Liquidity Fund . 312
HDFC Liquid Fund - 412
Kotak Liquid Fund - 414
TATA Liguid Fund - 204
Invesco India Liquid Fund 1,916 -
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - 405
Total Current investments 5,764 3,616

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
a. Investments in unquoted instruments
Aggregate carrying value 5,764 3,616
Aggregate market value 5,764 3,616

As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023

Particulars (X in Lakhs) (R in Lakhs)

11(a) - Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash on hand 17 7
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand = =
{c) Unrestricted balances in current accounts 1,722 4,090
Total Cash and cash equivalents 1,739 4,097
11(b) - Bank balances other than above

(a) Earmarked balances with banks

(i) In deposit accounts 4,024 3,650
Total Bank balances other than above 4,024 3,650

Notes:

(a) Earmarked balances with banks primarily represents balances held against issue of bank guarantee and power
business.

| Chartsrpd \%uunianfs
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

12 - Equity share capital

. As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
Particulars

(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Authorised:
7,50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,50,000 7,50,000
(March 31,2023: 7,50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each)
Issued , Subscribed and Fully Paid up :
6,32,16,337 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 6,321 6,321

(March 31,2023: 6,32,16,337 Equity Shares of X 10 each)

Notes:
{a) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares and the amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting period is as below:

Particulars Number of shares Share Capital

(X in Lakhs)
|Balance at March 31, 2022 6,00,53,547 6,005
Shares issued during the year 31,62,790 316
Balance at March 31, 2023 6,32,16,337 6,321
Shares issued during the year = 3
Balance at March 31, 2024 6,32,16,337 6,321

(b) Shareholding of Promoters are as follows:

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
Promoter name No of shares % of Total shares year
As at March 31, 2023
Tata Steel Limited 6,32,16,277 100% 5%
As at March 31, 2024
Tata Steel Limited 6,32,16,277 100%

[c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Promoter name No of shares % of Holding No of shares % of Holding
Tata Steel Limited 6,32,16,277 100% 6,32,16,277 100%

(d) The rights, powers and preferences relating to each class of share capital and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof
are contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

{e) In respect of every equity share, voting rights shall be in same proportion as the capital paid up on such equity share bears to the
total paid up capital of the Company.

{f) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

(g) In the event of liquidation, the shareholders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LUMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

13 - Other equlty
Particulars

Sacurities premium
Retained earnings
Tatal

Notes:
{1} Securitles premlum

Opening balance
Add: On fresh issue
Closing balance

[il) Retalned earnlngs

Opening balance
Net proflt for the year
Items of other p

d directly in retained earnings

net of tax

R ment of post-employ benefit obligati
Dividends pald (Including Interim dividend of ® 1,247 lakhs)
Closing balance

14 - Lease liabllities

As at March 31, 2024
 [Kintakhs)
78,990

32,097

1,11,087

As at March 31, 2024
{RIn Lakhs)

78,990

78,990

As at March 31, 2024
(X In Lakhs}

25,360
8,323

19
(1,605)
32,097

As at March 31,2023
__(Rinlakhs)

78,990

25,360

1,04,350

As at March 31, 2023
(R in Lakhs)

~ 72,506
6,484
8,990

As at March 31, 2023
(% in Lakhs)

20,917
9,099

(506)
{4,150)
25,360

Securlties premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve Is utllised In accordance with the provisions of Companles Act, 2013

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
e e (Rintakhs) :
= i —_— __ NonCurrent Tatal Non Current Current Total
Lease llabilities 1,399 1,396 438 1,834
Total Lease liabllities 970 1,399 1,396 438 1,834
15 - Trade payables
As at March 31, 2029 As at March 31, 2023
(% InLakhs) S ARimlaki)y
= Particulars Non Current Curregnt Total Non Current Current _Total
Craditors for supplles / services
{1} Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises {Refer note 27(F)) = 16,975 16,975 - 15,880 15,880
(ll) Total outstanding due other than (a){i) above 16,201 16,201 - 16,070 16,070
Total Trade payables - 33,176 33,176 - 31,950 31,950
Nates:
(3} Ageing and classification of creditors for suppliers and services:
(Rin Lakhs)
Outstanding for the following perlods from due date of payment
Unbililed dues/ Not Lessthan1Year  1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Total
As at March 31, 2024 yet due* Year
Undisputed trade payables )
(1} MSME 16,975 . E 16,975
(1) Others 16,006 167 - 16,173
Disputed trade payables
i) MSME - - - - -
(li) Others 28 - - - . 28
33,009 167 - S = 33,176
(X in Lakhs)
Outstanding for the following periods from Due date of Payment
Unbllled dues/ Not Lessthan1Year  1-2Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Total
As at March 31, 2023 yet due* Year
Und trade pay
{1} MSME 15,840 40 - . = 15,880
{ii) Others 15,168 851 - - 16,019
Disputed trade payables
IHI MSME - - - = -
(i) Others 5t - - . - 51
31,059 891 - = ] 31,950
* Unbilled dues/ Not yet due Includes cases where vendors are yet to submt the involces, retention money and amount hold for statutory non compllances by the vendors.
| (k) Amount outstanding to related partles
Particulars As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
(€ in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs}
Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 27{0)) 673 400
16 - Other financial llabilities
Partlculars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(Tin Lakhs) — o IxinLakhs) s
I R ——— Nen Current Current Total  Non Current _ Current _ Tetal
(a) Creditors for other liabilities
{1} Creditors for capital supplles/services - 305 305 315 315
(ll) Other credit balances
- Security and other deposits 8,836 - 8,836 8,671 562 9,233
-C [ for capltal di - 491 491 - 1,907 1,907
- Contract labllity 825 735 1,560 825 942 1,767
- Other credit balances - 384 384 - 342 342
{b) Creditors for accrued wages and salarles 64 3,148 3,212 94 5,576 5,670
Total Other financial llabllities 9,725 5,063 14,788 9,590 9,644 19,234
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

17 - Provisions

19 - Deferred income
Particulars

(a) Grants for property, plant and equipment
(b) Other deferred income
Total Deferred income

20 - Other liabilities
Particulars

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(% in Lakhs) (= in Lakhs)
- Non Current Current Tatal Non Current Current
Provision for performance gﬁra-ntee - 100 100 - 137
Provision for estimated loss on contracts 354 502 856 354 1,521
Provision for liquidated damages 170 211 381 162 211
Provision for suraksha scheme 30 3 33 31 3
Total Provislons 554 816 1,370 547 1,872
|Note:
(a) The details of 1t in pr is as below: (R in Lakhs)
Particulars Performance  Estimated loss on Liquidated Suraksha
. ___Guarantee contract Damag Scheme
Balance at March 31,2022 130 524 364 35
Provision created during the year 7 1,351 9 2
Provisions reversed/utilised during the year - - - 3)
|Balance at March 31, 2023 137 1,875 373 34
Provision created during the year 56 312 8 2
Provisions reversed/utilised during the year (93) (1,331) - (3)
IBalance at March 31, 2024 100 856 381 33
18 - Employee benefit obligations
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(R in Lakhs) 2 __Rinlakhs)
= s ___Non Current Current = Total NonCurrent ~ Current
(a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Leave obligations 3,509 508 4,017 3,476 1,028
(2) Long service award 55 4 59 53 7
(3) Provision for employee separation compensation 500 193 693 643 201
(4) Employee redundancy provision 810 120 930 842 140
(b) Provision for post retirement obligations (Refer note 27(B))
{1) Retiring gratuity 472 - 472 1,142 -
(2) Other defined benefit provisions 205 11 216 186 4
Total Employee benefit obligation: 5,551 836 6,387 6,342 1,380
Note:

(a) Advances received from customers

(b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions

(c) Statutory Dues {GST, Excise duty, service tax, TDS, etc)
(d) Power surplus

(e) Other credit balances

Tatal Other liabilitles

__ Total

137
1,875
373
34
2,419

Total

4,504
60
844
982

1,142
150
7,722

s per the leave policy of the Company, an employee is entitled to be paid the accumulated leave balance on separation. The Company presents the leave obligations as current and
non-current based on actuarial valuation considering estimates of availment of leave, separation of employee etc.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
___{xin Lakhs) o = ~ (Rinlakhs) -
__Non Current Current Total ___Non Current Current Total
52 54 106 106 54 160
11,086 722 11,808 9,479 628 10,107
11,138 776 11,914 9,585 682 10,267
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(X in Lakhs) e _(Rinlakhs)
Non Current Current ___ Total __Non Current Current Total
= 4,721 4,721 2 4,073 4,073
s 308 308 = 268 268
- 1,526 1,526 2 2,171 2,171
= 5,297 5,297 5 2,348 2,348
- 175 175 : 163 163
- 12,027 12,027 = 9,023 9,023




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

21 - Revenue from operations

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
_ (xinLakhs) ____(=in Lakhs)
Revenue from contracts with customer
(a) Service income 75,878 66,618
{b) Income from construction activities 25,720 20,092
{c) Sale of power 61,738 53,941
(d) Sale of land 665 999
{e) Other operating revenue 724 604
Total Revenue from operations 1,64,725 1,42,254
The broad break-up of revenue from operation is as below
Revenue recognised at a point in time 63,031 55,502
Revenue recognised over time 1,01,694 86,752
1,64,725 1,42,254

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation, which are partially or fully
unsatisfied as at year end is Rs. 1,29,247 lacs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,16,561 lacs) and the entity will recognize this revenue as thej
contract is completed and / or executed, which is expected to occur over the next 647 months.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Contract price 1,63,676 1,43,622
Adjustment for :
Liquidated damages 8 10
Performance guarantee (38) 7
Estimated loss on contract (net) (1,019) 1,351
1,64,725 1,42,254
22 - Other income
Particulars
(a) Dividend income 1,486 3,686
(b) Interest income 2 348 182
(c) Net Gain / {Loss) on sale of current investments 439 293
(d) Fair Value Changes on non-derivative financial asset/financia! liability 55 30
(e) Liability no longer required written back 1,085 252
(f) Profit / (Loss) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) (0) 3
(g) Other miscellaneous income 526 422
|Total Other income 3,939 4,868

Ia) '0' indicates value below the rounding off conversion of  Lakhs.

23 - Direct expenses

|Particulars
(a) Purchase of power 54,671 48,346
(b) Cost of services 58,538 49,991
{c) Cost of land sold 318 416
(d) Stores and spares consumed 17,467 15,390
{e) Fuel oil consumed 446 535
Total Direct expenses 1,31,440 1,14,678

24 - Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 15,422 11,895
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 1,617 1,448
(c) Redundancy cost 129 141
(d) Staff welfare expenses 1,185 934
Total Employee benefit expenses 18,353 14,418

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of X 326 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: X
459 Lakhs ) as expenses for short term employee benefits with respect to key managerial personnel:




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

25 - Finance costs

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
_ [®inLakhs) {%inlakhs)
() Interest expense
(1) Interest on security deposits 870 626
(2) Interest on others 19 3
(b) Finance charges on leases 183 77
Total Finance costs 1,072 706
26 - Other expenses
Particulars
(a) Repairs to plant and machinery 62 76
(b) Rent 32 162
I(c) Rates and taxes 293 168
{d) Insurance 174 120
(e) Provisions for doubtful debts and advances 383 (61)f
(1) Atlowance for credit losses 360 {1189)
(2) Provision for doubtful advances 23 58
(3) Bad debts and advances written off 4,662
(4) Provision for bad and doubtful debts and advances written back - (4,662)
(f) Payment to Statutory auditors [excluding GST of X 6.34 lakhs (March 31,2023
GST of X 3 lakhs)]
(1) Audit fee 27 13
(2) Tax audit fee 4 3
(3) Certification fee 6 2
(4) Out-of-pocket expenses 2 1
(g) Legal and other professional fees 276 245
(h) Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses 41 73
(i) Travelling expenses 1,138 971
{J) CSR expenditure (Refer note 27(0)) 135 119
(k) Information technology expenses 1,329 1,309
{l) Miscellaneous expenses 719 1,206
Total Other expenses 4,621 4,507




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SE!_VICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financlal Statements

27(A): Financlal Instruments

(i) Capital management
The C /'s capital i is il ded to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required based on annual operating plans and other strategic Investment plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash
generated from operations.

The Company monitors the capital structure based on net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfollo of the Company. Net debt includes lease
obligations less cash and cash

q , other bank bal {including non-current earmarked bal ) and current i

6,321 6,321
Other equity 1.11,087 1,04,350
Total equity (A) 1,17,408 1,10,671
Non-current lease obligati 970 1,396
Current lease obligations 429 438
Gross debt (B) 1,399 1,834
Total capltal {A+B} 1,18.807 1,12,505
Gross debt as abave 1,399 1,834
Less: Current Investments 5,764 3,616
Less: Cash and cash I 1,739 4,097
Less: Other balances with banks {Incl non-current earmarked bal: ) 4,024 3,650
Net debt (C) {10,128} (9.529_)‘
Net debt to equity * =

* Mot debt being negative, not applicable

(inc of financlal i

Flnan.r..lnl assets

Measured at fair valus through profit and |oss [FUTPL]
(@) in mutual funds 5,764 3.616
at amortized cost
(=} Cash and cash equivalents 1,739 4,097
b) Bank bal other than above 4,024 3,650
c} Trade receivables 36,728 25,058
d} Other financial asssts 18,618 22,623
(e} Investmants in subsidiarias 71,335 71,338
{f] Loans 14 20
Financial Lizbilities
atamertized cost
(31 Trade payables 33,176 31,950
(b} Cther financial liabilities 14,788 19,234
{c} Leasa labiliti 1,399 1,834

Investments in mutual funds are mandatorily classified as fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss.
At the end of the reparting period, there are no significant concentrations of credit risk for financial assets designated at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). The carrying
amount reflacted above represents the entities maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.

(1M} Fair value measurement

The short term financial assets and liabllitles are stated at amortized cost which is approximately to thelr falr values.

Investments carried at their fair values, are generally based on market quotations. The fair value In respect of the unquoted equity instruments cannot be rellably measured.
Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financlal instruments, Howaver, there are [nherent i in any estimati hnique. Therefore, for
substantially all financial Instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid [n sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting
date.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured q to initial recognltion at fair value, grouped Into Level 1 to Level 3, as described
below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hlerarchy includes fi ial assets and that are d by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of quoted equity shares and mutual fund investments.

Valuatlon techniques with observable Inputs (Level 2}): This level of hi hy includ ial assets and llabllit] d using inp'iis other than quoted prices Included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e., as prices) or Indirectly {i.e., derived from prices). This level of hi hy Includes Group’s th
counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuatlon techniques with slgnificant unobservable Inputs (Level 3): Thls level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model did not based on assumptions that are neither supported by

prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data, This level Includes investment in unquoted equity shares.

Investments in mutual funds 3,616 Level 1

Investments in equity shares 85,540 85,540 Level 3

There have been no transfers betwaen Laval 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

{i) Current financial assets are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(ii) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. Investments in equity shares included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy have been valued
using the cost=pproach to arrive at their fair value.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financlal Statements

(iv) Financia! risk management

In the course of its the C is d primarily to Interest rate and credit risk, which may adversely impact the falr value of its fi ial Instr The C y
has a risk management pollcy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risk iated with fi jal assets and liabllities such as Interest rate risk and credit
risk. The risk management aims at:

1. Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of Interest rate fl ion on the C /'s busil plan.

2. Achleve greater predictability to ings by di ining the fi { value of the expected earnings in advance.
Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, In realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a flnanclal instrument. The value of
a financlal Instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foralgn currency exchange rates, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market

n Al i

cannot be [ d with Y

Credit risk management:

Credit risk is the risk of financlal loss arlsing from counterparty failure to repay or service debt ding to the | tarms or obflgatl Credlt risk both the
direct risk of default and the rlsk of deterioration of cred thiness as well as risks. Financlal instruments that are subject to credlt risk and concentration thereof
principally consist of trade bles, loan ivables, i and cash and cash equivalents. None of the fi ial i of the Comp results in |
concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables conslst of a large number of customars. Ongoing cradit evaluation is performed on the fi ial condition of account bles and where appropriate,
provislon has bean consldered in the books.

Credlt risk sxposure to a singls counterparty:

= _ CugtomerMome 0 | Moarch31,2024 | March31,2023 | __ Remarks. =

Tata Steel Limited 56.04% 42.24% Since Holding Company, the credit risk is low.

Karnataka Urban Water Supply and Drainage Board 7.93% 11.93% Customer being a Government organization the credit risk is
Jharkhand Urban Infrastructure and Development Company 6.48% 10.95% low.

Concentration of CredIt risk to any counterparty did not exceed 10% of gross recelvables at any time during the year.

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its fi ial obligatl The objective of liquidity risk management Is to maintain sufficlent liquidity and ensure that

funds are avallable for use as per requirements.
The entity has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The entity invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liquid plus schemes of
mutual funds, which carry no/low mark to markat risk,

The table below provides details regarding the | of fi fal liabili i interest
(% in Lakhs)
: = ~ Goying | Commctwlamh | lemthand | Detweendi=5 [ Morethans
|—-= R Je it i) amount i flows o ES year = years yeais
March 31, 2024
|Nan-d ive fi ial liabilities
Trade 33,176 33,176 33,176 - -
Lease liabilities 1,398 1,399 429 970 -
(Other fi ial liabllities 14,788 14,788 5,063 B89 8,836
49,363 49,363 38,668 1,859 8,836
March 31, 2023
|Non-derivative financlal llabilities
Trade bl 31,850 31,950 31,950 = -
ILease llabllitles 1,834 1,834 438 1,396 =
(Other fi lal liabillt) 19,234 18,234 9,644 919 8,671
53,018 53,018 42,032 2,315 8,671




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

27(B): Employee Benefits
(1) Defined contributlon plans
The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognized in relation to these schemes

represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the
balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

The Company has recognized, in the statement of profit and loss account for the current year, an amount of X 1,123 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: 1,025 Lakhs) as
expenses under the following defined contribution plans:

i | iy ety 10 : ¥ | April2023-March | oo

::' ' ‘Benefit (Contribution ta) : 2024 j| Eanlianazmarhdoayy

Hth | s de il ot ¢ L [®InLakhs) (% In'Lakhs)

(a] |Provident fund 776) 678

(b) |Employees pensian scheme 198 192

{c) [TISCO employees pension scheme SG] 53

{d) [Superannuation fund 93] 102
Total Benefit (Contribution) 1,123 1,025

The major defined contribution plans operated by Company are as below:

Provident fund:
The Company provide provident fund benefit for eliglble employee as per applicable regulation where both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary.

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund and pension fund! set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company and the
Central Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme.

Superannuatlon fund:
The Company In India has a superannuation plan. Employees who are members of the defined benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benefits
depending on the years of service and salary drawn.

Separate irrevocable trusts are malntalned for employees covered and entitled to benefits. The Company contributes up to 15% or X 1.50 Lakhs whichever is
lower, of the eliglble empley~~'s salary to the trust every year. Such contrlbutlons are recognized as an expense when incurred. The Company has no further
obligation beyond this contribution.

(I) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows:
a) Funded
i. Post retirement gratuity
b) Unfunded
I. Farewell gifts
li. Packing and transportation benefit

Post retirement gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary payable
for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company makes annual contributions to gratulty funds
established as trusts or insurance companies. Company's liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Financlal Statements

The fallowlng table sets out the amounts recogmzed |n the financial statements for the retlrmg gratuity plans in respect of the Company:

‘For the year ended
ﬂuﬁn&d' nefit obllgqllon March 31,2024 _March 31,2023
£ (% In Lakhs) (X1n Lakhs)
a. Obhgation as at the beglnmng of the year 8,140 7,311
b. |Current service cost 454 411
c. |Interest cost 540 480
d. |Re-measurement (gains)/losses
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 140 {131)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 35 977
e. |Benefits paid (1,378) {908)
Obligation as at the end uf the vear 7,931 8,140
.Change in plan assets
a. |Fair value of plan assets asat begmmng of the year 6,958 6,985
b. |Interest income 499 468
c. |Re-measurement gains/(losses)
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 198 127
d. |Employers' contributions 1,142 326
e. |Benefits paid (1,378) {908)
Falr value of plan assets as at end of the year 7,459 6,998
ot : Asat i Asat
i Almuun' m&me’m the aa'lmne Sheet canisists of March31,2024 |  March31,2023
1 4 " [%in Lakhs) = (% In Lakhs)
a. Falr value of plan assets as at beginning/end of the year (7,459) (6,998)
b. |Present value of obligation as at the beginning/end of the year 7,931 8,140
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 472 1,142
STl ' For the year ended .
 of Profit and Loss ‘March 31,2024 March 31,2023
2 s K = (®In Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
a. |Service cost
(i) Current service cost 454 411
{ii) Past service cost - £
b. |Net interest expense M1 12
Defined benefit costs recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss 495 423
c. |The return on plan assets (greater/{less) than discount rate) (198) (127)
d. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 140 (131)
e. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 35 977
Defined benefit costs recorded in other comprehensive income (23) 719
Total of defined benefit costs 472 1,142
The assumptions used in accounting for the retiring gratuity plans are set out below:
g senh] R, o : Valuation.asiat .
RRPEST = March 31,2024 March ‘31,1023
a. |Discount rate {per annum) 7.00% 7.25%
b. |Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)
OPR 10.00% 10.00%
NOPR 7.50% 7.50%

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks as below:

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government/high
quality bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk: A decrease In the bond interest rate will Increase the plan llability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the

plan’s debt investments.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in

the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both

during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024 is 7 years (March 31, 2023: 7 years). The expected maturity analysis

of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

As at March 31,2024|  As at March 31, 2023
= YR Panlcylars {X in Lakhs) {% in Lakhs)
Less than a year 1,288 1,975
Between 1-2 years 755 667
Between 2-5 years 1,617 1,990
QOver 5 years 11,818 34,596
Total 15,478 39,228
The Company expects to contribute X 472 Lakhs to the funded retiring gratuity plans in financial year 2025.
The fair value of Company's plan asset as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 by category are as follows:
Investmentdetalls (%) As at March 31, 2024|  As at March 31, 2023
a. |GO! Securities (Central and State) 20.65% 20.65%
b. |High Quality Corporate Bonds {Including Public Sector Bonds) 12.01% 12.01%
c. |Cash and Scheme of insurance - conventional products 63.50% 63.50%
d. |Equity shares of listed companies 2.32% 2.32%
e. |Others 1.52% 1.52%
100.00% 100.00%

The table below outlines the effect on the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in the assumed rate of discount rate and

salary escalation:

{% in Lakhs}

y Assumption Change in Impact on scheme liabilities
; - : L assumption
As at March 31, 2024
L
Discount rate Increase by 1%, (533)
Decrease by 1% 617
. Increase by 1% 600
Salary escalation el
Y Decrease by 1% (530)
As at March 31, 2023
. Increase by 1%, {481)
Discount rate
Decrease by 1% 555
. Increase by 1%, 542
Salary escalation £
v Decrease by 1% (480)

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would

occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Packaging and transportation benefit scheme:

The packaging and transportation benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan that provides a benefit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria.

Packing and transportation is given to officers for shifting their household materials which is up to 1.5 times of their last drawn salary.

Farewell gift benefit scheme:

The farewell gift benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan that provides a benefit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria. The farewell benefit is
given to retiring employees in terms of gift coupons as per the category, i.e. X 5,000 to all non officers, X 7,000 to officers of ')/MO1 to JMO07' and % 5,000 to

other officers.

The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for the other defined benefit plans in respect of the Company:

AR e AT ; For the year ended
23 ~ Change In defined benefit obligation | March 31,2024 March 31,2023
e r TR ey ) o _{® In Lakhs}) | (X in Lakhs)
a. |Obligation as at the beginning of the year 188 205
b. |Current service cost 17 17
c. |Interest cost 14 14
d. |Re-measurement (gains)/losses
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 5 (5)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (7) (38)
e. |Benefits paid (2) {5)
Obligation as at the end of the year 215 188
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i ST ] A '3 For the year ended
,m.ﬁ@ih[;&ﬁflii&ﬁgim:;hﬁhlﬁfFrdﬂt_ind..mi;i | March 31,2024 March 31,2023
L, R Y % NS ___ (%in Lakhs) (%.in Lakhs)
a. |Service cost
{i) Current service cost 17 17
b. |Net interest expense 14 14
Defined benefit costs recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss 31 31
c. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 5 (5)
d. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (7) (38)
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive income (2) {43)
Total of defined benefit costs 29 {12)
The assumptions used in accounting for the ather defined benefit plans are set out below:
| ) Valuyation'as at
Bl s Warch 31,2024 Warch 31,2023
a. |Discount rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.25%
b. |Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)
OPR 10.00% 10.00%
NOPR 7.50% 7.50%

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024 is 7 years (March 31, 2023: 7 years) for Farewell gift benefit and 11
years (March 31, 2023: 11 years) for packing and transportation benefit. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted liability is as follows:

Particlers. As at March 31,2024|  AsatMarch ;1_.-2'023
A % (%in Lakhs) (%in Lakhs})
Less than a year 11 4
Between 1-2 years 12 18
Between 2-5 years 33 32
Over S years 82, 123
Total 138 177

The table below outlines the effect on the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in the assumed rate of discount rate and

salary escalation:

(% in Lakhs}
.' A pa '.-.-‘:' 5 h's R et : mﬁgeln - j — > =
R ' Assmption e impact on scheme liabilities
o . 4 . pﬂn Iﬂw pac ns GITI_' ue
As at March 31, 2024
Discount rate Increase by 1%, (20)
Decrease by 1% 24
Salary escalation Increase by 1%, 22
Decrease by 1% {19)
As at March 31, 2023
Discount rate Increase by 1%, (18)
Decrease by 1% 21
Salary escalation Increase by 1%, 19
Decrease by 1% (17)

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit abligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would

occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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27(C): Information about Operating segments

(% in Lakhs)

__ Particulars Serviee | Power | Construction | Realestate | Un-allocated Total

Total Revenue 75,974 62,366 25,720 665 = 1,64,725
66,660 54,503 20,092 999 1,42,254

Segment Results before finance cost and 6,340 3,008 1,350 346 11,044
taxes. 9,279 1,989 {1,780) 582 10,070
Unallocated corporate expenses (net off other - - (526) (526)
Income) - - (722) (722)
Finance Costs (net off income} - 869 - - (146) 723
30 625 {131) 524

Profit before taxes and exceptional items - - - d 10,847
including other comprehensive income - ~ - 2 10,268
Taxes = = - = 2,505
- - - - = 1,675

Profit after taxes (Total comprehensive - = - . 8.342
income for the year) - z - = < 8,593
Segment assets 35,166 34,409 21,772 7,588 99,534 1,98,469
26,793 32,342 25,171 7,955 1,00,859 1,93,120

Segment liabillties 27,368 33,224 15,462 1,013 3,994 81,061
35,260 29,656 13,438 828 3,267 82,449

Segment assets capitalized / (disposed) during 554 3,944 121 - {19) 4,600
the year. 273 2,075 166 - 1 2,515
Segment depreciation and amortisation 638 1,396 227 - 95 2,356
461 1,273 147 - 88 1,969

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation - (665) - (665)
{net off reversals} 1,309 - 1,309

Notes:

(i) The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. There is no significant difference in the business conditions prevailing in various states in
India, where the Company has its operations. There are no sales made by the Company to external customers outside India. Consequently, there is no need for
separate disclosure for geographical segment as required under IND AS-108 "Operating Segment”.
(i) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments as also
amounts allocated on a reasonable basis. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as unallocated corporate assets and

liabilities respectively.

(i) Operating segments have been identified based on how the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews and assesses the Company's performance

(iv} Previous year figures are in italics.
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27(D): Related party disclosure as per Ind AS 24

List of related parties and relationships:

Party

Relatlonship

Tata Sons Private Limited

investor having significant influence over Holding
Company

Tata Steel Limited

Holding Company

Tayo Rolls Limlted
The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited

Tinplate Company of India Limited {merged with Tata Steel Limited
w.e.f January 15, 2024)

Tata Metaliks Limited {merged with Tata Steel Limited w.e.f February
01, 2024)

Tata Steel Long Products Limited (merged with Tata Steel Limited
‘w.e.f November 15, 2023)
Neslanchal [spat Nigam Limited
Tata Steel Support Services timited

Ceramat Private Limited

Tata Steel Mining Limited (merged with Tata Stee! Limited w.e.f
September 01, 2023)

Tata Steel Foundation

Jamshedpur Football and Sporting Private Limited

Tata Steel Downstream Products Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

MJunction Services Limited

TM International Logistics Limited

Joint Venture of Holding Company

Tata Refractories Limited

Associate of Holding Company

Tata Blue Scope Steel Private Limlted

Jamshedpur Continuous Annealing and Processing Company Private
Limited

Joint Venture of fellow subsidiary

Haldia Water Management Limited
Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited

The Tata Pigments Limited
Adlityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited
Tata Steel SEZ Limited

Subsidiaries

Naba Diganta Water Management Limited

Jamipo! Limited
Nicco Jubilee Park Limited

Himalaya Steel Mill Services Private Limited

Joint Ventures

M. Ritu Raj Sinha

Key M ial Personnel

{1} Transactions with related partles In the normal course of business are as follows:

(% In Lakhs)
: ! Jalnt ventures Joint Venture =
(= .~ Fel 4 % ol \ ‘Assocl
Holding C F gsllon of Holding Subsldiarles of fellow | Jolnt Vantures ie e ato of 1| Key m‘"m,ﬂ"
{ J substdlarles . y
I Company subsldlary
» |
Purchase of power : 25,461 = 2 = = = 2 s
= 23,549 - s : x -
Purchase of goods/stores 2 752 81 = = = = = Z
= 1,325 409 - - - - = =
Sale of power = 924 - = 7 = = = -
830 = 3 5 - -
Rendering of services = 87,726 3,898 = 49 387 70 465 .
= 89,999 3,392 7 53 105 60 -
Receiving of services 427 1,365 26 8 20 - . = =
735 807 28 32 /8 -
| = = o - = - - = =
Interest expenses i
lLloans (ICD) recovered - - - - - + E: - S
= = = 3 i 10 . a
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. - 2 (% in Lakhs)
|| vestor having | |
] B 7 i Jalnt ventures | Joint Venture 1
| ||senificant influenca) Ly company|[ - Fellew of Holding | Subsidieries | offellow | tolnt Ventures [ ot e[y !
|| overHolding | T "7 | subsidiarles ety bl 8 C ¥l ¥
Company ] pany L/
Interest income - - = = = . - r - =
Expenses incurred = = = = 4 - > E =
E 3 - 3 - 1 .
Rent expenses . - - 2 = - : : ;
Unsecured advances/ - 36 = . = £ . =
deposits received - 704 102 - = - -
Issue of equity shares . 3-15 ‘ ' 541_44 _- A- - :
Premium on issue of - - - - = = = = =
equity shares - 6,484 - - 1,656 - -
L]
Purchase of investments in - Z = - - - £ - -
subsidiaries and joint i 7,698 ; N B B = -
ventures
o ) - 1,605 - - - - - -
Dividend paid
ividend pai = 15 = = = =
Dividend received = Z . . 203 = 1,285 . =
3 303 = 3,383 - -
Remuneration pald - . - . - - . - 256
- - - - 2 z 298
(i) Outstanding balancas: 1% In Lakhs)
AT : | Investor having | | wad|f
e ol Jolnt ventures| | Jolnt Venture
7 sllqll_ﬂunt_lnﬂunuu i Holding Company follow of Holding | Subsidlarles | of fellow Joint Ventures | .b:slsodatuof mm‘“"‘,’"'
| ' overHolding | : subsidiaries g Company| p
. Company subsidlary
= Company
Trade recelvabl - 22,015 1,605 - 24 136 0 306 3
- 12,994 1,439 S 50 69 0 - -
Other financial assets - - 14,522 292 - - 37 - 205 -
contract assets 17,556 15 d ¥ - d -
Loans {ICD) 7 = = 0 5
Other financial assets . . . 0 3 2 0 - -
- - 0 1 2 - -
Investments = = = z 73,002 = 14,204 a Z
= = - - 73,002 - 14,204 2 =
Trade payabl 494 131 23 1 20 4 E = =
358 29) 9 e 53 4 5 - -
Other non-financial - 616 830 £ e = = - -
liabilities - 1,128 156 1 - = =

a) The Company has provided support |etter to Haldia Water Management Limited for R 500 Lakhs for meeting its liabilitles as and when they fall due for a period of 12 months.

b) The details of remuneration pald to key managerial personnel are provided in note 24. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has contributed % Nil lakhs {(March 31, 2023: % Nil ]
lakhs) to post employment benefit plans managed by the holding company. As at March 31, 2024, amount receivable from post-employment benefit fund is ® 0.01 lakhs (March 31, 2023: X 109
lakhs) on account of retirement benefit obligations paid by the Company directly.

¢} Transactions with joint ventures have been disclosed at full value and not at thelr proportionate share.

d) Previous year figures in italics.
€} '0'indicates value below the round aff conversion of ® Lakhs
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27(E): Contingent liabilities and caplital commitments

S bl o : Ay o ey | xin Lakha). {Tin Lakhs)
- Sales tax, value added tax and service tax 9,320 9,320
- Legal cases 1,454 1,454
- Income tax 1,714 1,714
(1) The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Court Jud in case of "Vivek da Vidy dir And Others Vs The Reglonal Provident

Fund Commissioner (ll) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No. C-/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by,
Employees' Provident Fund Organisation in relatlon to non-excluslon of certain from the definitlon of "basic wages" of the relevant employees|
for the purposes of determining contrlbution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Fund and Miscell 1s Provisions Act, 1952. In the|

of the these are not payable and have not been deposited during the year. The aforesald matter is not likely to have an)

Impact and accordingly no provision has been made In these flnanclal statements.

(i) Capital C (net of ad ) for the ition of Property, plant and equipments as at March 31, 2024 Is ® 260 Lakhs (as at March 31,
2023: ® 279 Lakhs).

27(F): The dues as defined In the "Micro Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have
been Identified on the basis of Information avallable with the C The discl relating to Micro and Small Enterprises forming part of note 15(a)
as at March 31, 2024 are as under:

) 7 : ; B : T Fortheyear | formeye r
£ : A f o - | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
e e e e ) N 4 e 2= i _ [%in Lakhs) {% In Lakhs)
Due In respect of micro, small and medlum enterprises Is :
- llers A
(a) {1) * Princlpal due to supp egl under the MSMED Act and remalning unpaid as at the end of| 16,975 15,880
accounting year
{11) Interest due thereon = 2
b = d o = - = =
(v ,),“,) Principal pal : gi under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the 48,092 50,731
(1 I paid to liers reglstered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appolnted day during the year - -
{c) Interest due and payable for the year ,where the principal has been pald but Interest under the MSMED Act, 19 N
2006 not paid
{d) Interest accrued and remalining unpaid at the end of accounting year 173 154
* Includes dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (MSME) Included within other financial llabllities.
27(G): Earnings per Share (EPS)
Ty PartiAiTars: | ended March 31,
i Ty i i ST » = (tin Lakhs) |
(1) Profit for the year 9,099
(Il) Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Ct used In calculating baslic/dlluted EPS 8,323 9,099
{lii) Weighted average ber of equity shares used as d in basic/diluted EPS 6,32,16,337 6,05,09,555
{lv) Nominal value of ordinary shares (Rs.) 10 10
(v) Basic /diluted earnings per ordinary share (Rs.) 13.17 15.04
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27{H): Income tax rec in the of profit and loss

A B0 o SO R S ended March 31, | ended Mareh 31,
1y : (Einkakhs} | (%inLakhs)
Current tax

- In respect of current year 1,758 1,929

- In respect of prlor year 256 66
Defarred tax 491 (320)
Total Income tax expenses 2,505 1,675

The Incame tax expenses far the year can ba reconciled to the accounting profit as lollows:

T FeESine For the year

Ay e R O A ALY i I (tinlakhs) | (Xin Lakhs]
Profit before tax from continuing operations 10,847 10,268
{a) Income tax lculated at 25.168% 2,730 2,585
{b) Decrease in tax expenses due to benefit of chapter VI deductlons {380) {928)
—{n:] Effect of expenses not allowed in income tax 64 20
(d) Ad] to current tax In respect of previous year 256 66
{e) Effect of expenses aliowed in tax on payment basls {165) {83)
(f) Effect of reversal of provision on which deferred tax was not created - 15
Total 2,505 1,675
tax ised In of Profit and Loss 2,505 1,675

The tax rate used for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% payable by corporate
entities In India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws.

Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

(% In Lakhs)
[N A S| asatmarchay, | For the year ended | {expense)/ Income ::m:’:;
ARt ey i SRR INgT March31,2023 | recognisedin | " h
a0 . = y TR | profitand loss
e : & - | profitand loss o :
Deferred tax asset
Pravision for leave salaries 1,016 106 1122 {123) 999
Other sk 1,988 372 2,360 {220) 2,140
Provision for employee ion scheme 369 (49) 320 {44) 276
Deferred income 2,485 99 2,584 415 2,999
Total 5,858 528 6,386 28 6,414
Deferred tax llability
Property, plant and equipment and others 3,293 208 3,501 519 4,020
Total 3,293 208 3,501 519 4,020
Net Defe d tax asset 2,565 320 2,885 {491) 2,394
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27(1) Capital work In progress (CWiP):
A. Ageing {% In Lakhs)
ey Lessthan 1 year Total
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 2,627 343 46 4 3,020
Projects temporarily suspended - = - - -
Total 2,627 343 46 4 3,020
As at March 31, 2023
Projects In progress 1,938 369 254 41 2,602
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,938 369 254 41 2,602
B. Exprcted Capitalisation / Completion Schedule:For CWIP whose completion |s overdua: {% In Lakhs)
[ I T IR . ! . - To be completed in
7 i) [Fes— 23years [ More than 3 years
PProjects In progress:
Land, Boundary and Other work at 33/11kV =
substation at Kanderbera 77
33KV FEDR BIRBAN/BALIGUMA MAUJA 33/11KV P i
2nd 132kV Source from Tata Power to TGS =
132/33 kV Substation (Part-1) 583
33kV, 11kV and LT Distribution Network at EMC -
(Part-1) 48
11kV and LT Distribution Network at Adityapur / 3 =
Gamharia Area {Part-1) 71
11kV Network Augmentation at Seraikela Town -
and nearby area (Part-1) 124
2nd 11kV underground feeder for Seraikela =
Town Distribution (Part-1) 19
Installation of 11kV RMU for reliability 3] =
enhancement in existing network (Part-1) 57
Network Augmentation work in Rural Area (Part- z
1) 152
Replacement of bare O/H line by ABC in - =
Gambharia Rural Network (Part-1) 3
Roll out of Smart and Pre-Paid Metering for =
Consumers (Part-1) 3
Construction of Store-room in existing 3 =
Substation at Phase -1,2,4 and 7 (Part-1) 6
Total 1,148 = >
(T in Lakhs)
T .." T _To be completed In- J :
s RS MAh 22 2 tessthantyear | 12 years 23ysars | Morethan3 years

Projects in progress:
33kV Feeder to Birbans / Baliguma Mouza 616 - = -
Land, Boundary and Other work at 33/11kV substation| 4 ; =
at Kanderbera
11kV and LT Distribution Network at Adityapur / 54 E = .
Gamharia Area {Part-1)
11kV Network Augmentatlon at Seraikela Town and a R R ~
nearby area (Part-1)

Total 718 = =

T ¥ AsatMarch 31, | AsatMarch 31,
Particulars- Note No 2024 2023

s =2 7 {%In Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Depreciation charge of Right-of-use assets

Leasehold land 43 43

Plant and machinery 3A 246 103

Vehicles 203 B6
Interest expenses (Included In finance costs) 25 183 77
Expenses related to short term leases {included In other expenses) 32 75
a) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended was % 619 Lakhs {for the year ended March 31, 2023 R 286 Lakhs)
b) Rent expenses also include rent of guest houses and Company quarters which have not been classifled as short term lease. With the exception of short-
term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right of- use asset and a lease liability. Payments
made for short-term leases and leases of low value are expensed on a stralght-line basis over the lease term.
c) As at March 31, 2024, commitments for leases not yet commenced was NIl (March 31, 2023: Nil).
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27(K) Ratlos:
WU AT ~ Numerator Denominator Current. Previous %
£ ; i . Perlod Period Variance
™ 1.45 131 11%
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilitles
IS holder" N.A. N.A. N.A.
Debt-equity ratio Total debt hareholder's
equity
d 5.68 13.49 -58'
Debt service coverage ratio Earqlng for debt Debt service A
Iservice
Average 0.07 0.09 -22%,
[Return on equity ratio Profit after tax shareholder's
equity
Sales (Revenue  |Average 18.36 15.85 16%.
Inventory turnover ratio R
from operations} Jinventary
Sales (Revenue  |Average trade 5.01 5.47 -8%
Trade receivables turnover ratlo )
from operations) |receivable
Average trade 4.04 3.76 7
Trade payables turnover ratio Direct expenses " fe 4
INet capital turnover ratlo Total revenue Working capital 7.00 8.75 -20%
INet profit ratlo Profit after tax Total revenue 0.05 0.06 ~17%)
. Earning before 0.10 0.10 0%
[ Ci b
Return on capital employed Interest and tax apital employed
X 0. -
Return on investment Profit after tax F‘m of 007 o8 13%
investment

Reason for Varlatlons over 25% or More:

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: The Interest on security deposit pertalning to current year Is adjusted with consumer billing in March 2024 itself, while in the

previous year it was done in the month of April 2023.

returns filed with banks:

27(L): Details of guarterk
RN thebank Nature of current assets offered as security
. A :
HDFC Bank (HDFC) Stocks and recelvables - Pari Pasu charge on entire current assets of the
Company.
t ts witl
State Bank of Indla (SBI) 1,000 Hypothecatlon of book debts of the Company and other current assets with
other MBA lenders.
Detalls furnished in g ly filed with the above banks: (% In Lakhs)
i == thmnrhm unt: ~ Statement Quarter Amoaunt as per Amount as per Difference
e f quarterly statement financials
a1 17,787 17.787 -
Net working capital FFR1 Q2 19,333 19,333 #
to S8i Q3 19,352 19,352 -
Q4 24,101 24,101 -
Qi 8,817 8,817 =
Inventory Stock a2 8,905 8.905 -
with HDFC and SBI Q3 9,234 9,234 =
Q4 9,013 9,013 -
Qi 48,068 48.068 ]
Gross trade bles including unbiiled deb Stock Statement Q2 55,300 55.300 -
{Net of contract liabllity) with HDFC and SBI Q3 48,305 48,305 -
Q4 56,843 56,843 -
a1 31,040 31,040 -
| . Stock Q2 31,805 31,805 -
d bl d Includi dj
Trade payables and including capital creditors with HDFC and SBI ) 33,131 33.131 3
Q4 33,482 33,482 =
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27|Mt: I nvahlz proparty not hei.nl held In the name of the C a5 at March 31, 2024:
i = ﬁm‘" urryln;' mmﬁu
I thmkmv dlamn.
e e
MR it % ) | {xInLakhs] (®inLakhs)
E).mmlon c;f.;:l_'us" school building ™ :i :: :: Land is provided to Tata Steel Limited
- fms for nefv:‘/ HR/IR office 5 2 No [TSL) on lease from Government of
cunmu“!o" °f socl]ety °_ mf — 7 5 No Jharkhand. Buildings are extension
gonstruction o L — done as per business needs on the
Ladles washroom building 1 - No existing building of TSL.
Cunsliuctiun uf PBD building 49 35 No Bulldlngs constiucted In industiial plot
bstatlon buildi 26 18 No -9, C/87(P), NS- 128, NS-60, NS-5 of
Office building 1st floor of Ph-1 /S 46 34 No Adltyapur Industrial Area
Office bullding 1st floor of Ph-15/S 4 3 No i Authority {AIADA).
N The Company has the possession
Boundary wall for Sarelkela S/S under 33KVA 16 12 o certificate for the same.
Substation bullding at TGS 136 =L No Land taken on lease by Tata Steel
Substation building at TGS 28 20 No
: 2 Limited (TSL).
Substation bullding at TGS 19 14 No Il | N
il eod TGS T £l No Dlrector, TSL has given the
gocowns approval for using the Tata Growth
Substation building at TGS 1 1 No Shop (TGS) land on April 29, 2006.
Total 404 298

27(N): Addltional regulatory information required by Schedule Il
(1) Detalls of benaml property held - No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(11) Wilful defaulter - The Company has not been declared wilful defauiter by any bank or financial Institution or government or any government authority.

(lll) Relatlonshlp with struck off companles - The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies
Act, 1956.
(Iv) C | with ber of layers of ¢ les- The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{v} Comp with app d sch (s) of arrang - The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting
impact on current or previous financial year.

{vi) Reglstratlon of charges or satisfaction with Reglstrar of Companles - There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the
Reglstrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

{vil) Fair val of & property: The Company does not require falr valuation since there are no investment properties.

{viil) valuation of Property, Plant and Equlpment, intanglble asset and investment property: The Company has not revalued Its property, plant and
equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(ix) Utllisation of borrowed funds and share premlum: (A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(les), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not recelved any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forelgn entitles (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall,

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficlaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the ltke on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries.

(x) Undisclosed Income: There Is no income surrendered or dlisclosed as income during the current or previous year In the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{xI) The Company has done an assessment to Identify Core Investment Company (CIC) [including CIC's in the Group] as per the necessary guidelines of
Reserve Bank of India (including Core Investment Companles (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016). The Companies identified as CICs at group level are Tata Sons
Private Limited, Tata Industries Limited, Panatone Finvest Limited, TMF Holdings Limited, Fincare Business Services Limited, T S Investments, Talace Private
Limited.

(xil) Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded or invested in crypta currency or virtual currency durlng the current or
pravious year.
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27(0): Bscioyare in relation 1o o e wodial

[ Total
Amolit required 1o be spent a1 par Seetion 185 of
the pct

menT pent during the pear an

Camtruttionfhzquizition of an awer
{ii) £ purpaies other than {1 abowe

'Ot indieates vilwe Bafow the raunding off converdion af ¥ Laths

27(P}: The dividend declared by the Company Is based on profits avallable for distribution as reported In the financial statements of the Company. On April
25, 2024 the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a dividend of € 2.70/- per Ordinary share of ® 10 each In respect of the year ended March
31, 2024 subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, if approved, the dividend would result in  cath outflow of € 1,709 Lakhs.

27(Q): The Company’s Immediate Holding Company Tata Steel Limited prepares Its cansolidated finandial statements as required under sectlon 129(3) of
the Act. Tata Steel Utilitles and Infrastructure Services Umited is an intermediate HoldIng Company with Investments In subsidiaries and Joint ventures and
has avalled the exemption as per proviso to rule 6 of section 129(3) of the Act for not preparing Jts consolldated flnanclal statements.

For Price & Co Chartered L
Firm Regintration Mumber - 3040258 /E-300000

g 2t r
Plyush Sonthalla Ritu Raj Snk; i W
Partner

Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No - 062447 DIN: 00729535 Place : New Dalhi

Place : Kolkata
Date; April 25, 2024 Date: April 25, 2024
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1k

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report and annexures thereto, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector V, Salt Lake
Kolkata - 700 091, India
T: +91 (33) 44001111 / 44662000

Registered office and Head office: Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091

Price Waterhouse & Co. {a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no:
LLPIN AAC-4362) with effect from July 7, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is
304026E/E300008 (ICAI registration number before conversion was 304026E)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 0of 5

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 3 of 5

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup
of certain books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been
maintained on a daily basis during the year and the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to
our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi) below

on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 4 of 5

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 27(E) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2024, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. (Refer Note 17
to the financial statements). The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv. (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in Note 27N(ix) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 27N(ix) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of
the Act.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used five accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except
that in case of three accounting software the audit log is not maintained at application level for
modification, if any, by certain users with specific access and for other two accounting software the
audit trail feature, at application level did not operate throughout the year while no audit trail has
been enabled at the database level for direct data changes for all accounting software. Further, during
the course of our audit except for the aforesaid instances where we are not able to comment upon, we
did not notice any instance of audit rail fealure being tampered with.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

N

Piyush Sonthalia

Partner

Membership Number: 062447
UDIN: 24062447BKFTEG4006
Kolkata

April 25, 2024
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Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Utilities
and Infrastructure Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Page1of2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Steel
Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Utilities
and Infrastructure Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Page20f2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7+

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

y 2

Piyush Sonthalia

Partner

Membership Number: 062447
UDIN: 24062447BKFTEG4006
Kolkata

April 25, 2024
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Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Utilities and
Infrastructure Services Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of account
and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report

that:

i. (a) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a
portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the
year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

()

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 2 on Property, plant
and equipment and Note 3A on Right-of-use assets to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company, except for the following:

Description  Gross Held in the ‘Whether Period held - Reason for not being
of property carrying name of promoter, indicate held in the name of
value director or range, the Company
(Rs. in their relative where
lakhs) or employee appropriate
Buildings 78 Tata Steel No Not applicable Land is provided to TSL
Limited (TSL) on lease from Government
of Jharkhand. Buildings
are extension done as per
business needs on the
existing building of TSL.
Buildings 141 Adityapur No Not applicable  Buildings constructed in
Industrial industrial of ATADA. The
Area Company has the
Development possession certificate for
Authority the same.
(AIADA)
Buildings 185 Tata Steel No Not applicable Land taken on lease by
Limited (TSL) TSL whose Managing

Director has given the
approval for using the
Tata Growth Shop (TGS)
land on April 29, 2006.
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(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the

change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings [have been initiated on (or) are
pending against] the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is
appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns

or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of account. Also, refer
Note 27(L) to the financial statements.

iii. (a) The Company has not made any investments in, granted secured / unsecured loans/ advances in nature of
loans to companies, limited liability partnerships and other parties during the year, other than
investments in sixteen mutual fund schemes and granted unsecured loans to six employees. The aggregale
amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or
advances to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below:

Loans
(Rs. in lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year.
- Others 5
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above case
- Others 4

The above amounts are included in Note 5 on Loans to the financial statements.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments / loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were
granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) Inrespect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated,

and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of
interest as applicable.

(d) Inrespect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.
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(e) There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which have fallen due during the year and were

®

iv.

vii. (a)

(b)

renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan.

The loans granted during the year, had stipulated the scheduled repayment of principal and the same were
not repayable on demand.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its certain services. We have broadly
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of
income tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. We are informed that the Company has applied for exemption
from operations of Employees' State Insurance Act. We are also informed that actions taken by the
authorities to bring the employees of the Company under the Employees’ State Insurance Scheme has been
contested by the Company and payment has not been made of the contribution demanded. Also, refer note
27(E) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to
provident fund.

There are no statutory dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, duty of excise
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars other statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute,
are as follows:

Name of the Natureof Amount(net Amount Period to Forum where the dispute
statute dues of payments) Paid which amount is pending
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs.in relates
lakhs)
Jharkhand Sales Tax 101 - 2009-10 and Commissioner of Commercial
CST Act, 1956 2011-12 Taxes
53 26 2008-09 and  Commercial Taxation
2013-14 Tribunal
4 - 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner of

Commercial Taxes
Jharkhand Value 1,313 75  2012-13,2014- Joint Commissioner of
VAT Act, Added Tax 15 to 2016-17 Commercial Taxes (Appeals)
2005 230 6 2007-08 and Commissioner of Commercial

2013-14 Taxes
987 - 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes
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Name ofthe Nature of Amount(net Amount Period to Forum where the dispute
statute dues of payments) Paid which amount is pending
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in relates
lakhs)
Madhya Value 28 - 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner of
Pradesh VAT  Added Tax Commercial Taxes
Act, 2002
Andhra Value 2 107 2008-09 to High Court
Pradesh VAT  Added Tax 2009-10
Act, 2005
West Bengal Value 102 31 2012-13,2013- Appellate & Revisional Board
VAT Act, Added Tax 14 and 2016-17
2003
Karnataka Sales Tax 32 5 2008-09 and  Joint Commissioner of
CST Act, 1957 2015-16, Commercial Taxes (Appeals)
2016-17
86 34 2009-10 Commercial Taxation
Tribunal
917 - 2011-12 to High Court
2012-13
Odisha CST Sales Tax 8 1 2012-13 to Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 1957 2015-16 Commercial Taxes (Appeals)
Kerala VAT Value 11 - 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 2003 Added Tax Commercial Taxes (Appeals)
Finance Act, Service 8,821 326 2008-09 to Commissioner of Central
1994 Tax 2016-17 Excise & Service Tax
136 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner of CGST
Income-tax Income- 1,824 - AY2010-11to  Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 tax AY 2012-13 Tribunal
Central Goods GST 16 2 2017-18 Appellate Authority
and Services Demand
Tax Act, 2017
Electricity Electricity 1 = 2013-14 to Deputy Commissioner of
Duty Act Duty 2015-16 Commercial Taxes
Viil. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) Asthe Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the reporting
under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on

(e

®

X.

@

)

xi. (a)

xii.

xiii.

()

(©

an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised funds on
short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be
filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received whistle-blower
complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on our audit and reporting
under this clause. As explained by the management, there were certain complaints in respect of which
investigations are ongoing as on the date of our report and our consideration of the complaints having any
bearing on our audit is based on the information furnished to us by the management.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under
Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under
Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.




Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Utilities and
Infrastructure Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Page 6 of 7

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV, In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the
Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial activities during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c¢) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has seven CICs as part of the
Group as detailed in note 27(N) (xi) to the financial statements. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xvili.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount
remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent under
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing projects to a special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act until the date of our report. However, the
time period for such transfer, i.e., a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year as permitted
under the said sub-section has not elapsed until the date of our report. Details are as given below:
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Financia | Amount to Amount Amount Amount Amount not
lyear | bespentin | remaining | transferred to transferred transferred
accordanc unspent Special Bank to Special to Special
e with as at the Account u/s Bank Bank
section year-end 135(6), within Account u/s Account u/s
135(5) to be 30 days from 135(6), after 135(6), till
(Rs. in transferre end of a period of 30 the date of
lakhs) d special financial year days from audit report
account (or till the date end of (Rs.in
u/s 135(6) of audit financial year lakhs)
(Rs. in report, if that (tll the date
lakhs) is earlier) of audit
(Rs. in lakhs) report)
(Rs. in lakhs)
FY 2023 127 11 - = 11
- 2024
Also, refer Note 27(0) to the financial statements.
xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Financial Statements.

Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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